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THE EPISCOPAL CHURCHES
OF SENECA COUNTY

Episcopalians were not among the
largest in church memberships in
seneca County but members were cer-
tainly enthusiastic. In a pericd
of about 15 years, no less than
seven Episcopal churches 7and chapels
were built in the central and
south-central section of the county.

ST. PAUL'S CHURCH,WATERLOQ

This was the first Protestant
Episcopal Church in Seneca County.
It was organized on Nov. 17, 1817.
The meeting occured at the village
schoolhouse, just four months and
ten days following the organization
of the First Presbyterian Church of
Waterloo. The Rev. Orrin Clark
officiated at this first meeting.
Benjamin Hendricks and Dr. Gardner
Welles were pjected wardens; John
Watkins, Daniel Rhoadas, Enoch
Chamberlain, Martin Kendig, dr.
Jesse Clark, John Knox, Charles
Swift and William H. Stewart were
named vestryman.

For the firsft seven and a half
years the servicas were held in
the school hcuse ¢r court house.

A resclution was made in March
1820 to “"erect a house of nublic
worship", but it wasn't until
January 1825 that a contract was
made with a masoen to lary the
foundation of the church. The cost
of §$3,300 was raised through rent-
als of the siips and pews of the
church. .

The first sale of the pews was
on April 3, 1826 and the following
May, the Rev. William Weber was
offered $250 as rector for the
year. The church was ccnsecrated
Sept. 16, 1826 by the Rt. Rev.
John Henry Hobart, bishcp of New
On May 6, 1839, the Rev.

Fli Wheeler became rector at a
salary of $650. He remained with the
church until June 30, 1847,

In 1849, the church purchased a
brick schoolhouse n2ar the church.
Many parents relished the idea that
they could have a choice in an educ-
ation orogram for their children.
The parish school became too small
and in 1852 it was enlarged.

The church snciety grew and it
became apparant that a larger church
was neaded. In July 1858, the Rev.
Robert M. Parke came and it was
during his term as rector that the
present beautiful Gothic church was
built.

The wardens at that time were
Calvin Y. Cook and Thomas Fatzinger;
the vestrymen were: Sterling G.
Hadley, Levi Fatzinger, George Ccok,
Benjamin Bacon, Daniel S. Kendig,
Enos Laney, John C. Watkins and
Sidney Warner. Miss Serene Birdsall
was organist.

The cost of the building including
a fence and the organ was $28,780.57.
Many of the needed and valuable
furnishings were provided as gifts
by the various members and organiz-
ations of the church society.

The Rev. Mr. Parke remained until
Fepbruary 1871 and hewas replaced in
April of the same year by the Rev.
William D'Orville Doty. During his
term of service, the parsonage on
Main St. was purchased. St.Jdohn's
Chapel was built in the north-
eastern section of the village on
land donated by Miss Jane M. Hunt.
It was built to provide educational
and religious services to children
and adults in other sections of the
village.

The clergyman who perhaps remained
the longest period of time at
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St. Paul's was the Rev. cohn B.
Arthur who resigned 2as rcctor on
June 1, 1942 afier 25 years of
service. He went tc Geneva Chio,
where he was rector of Christ
Episcopal Church <f Geneve until
1956 when he retired.

The rector who preceeded the Rev.
Mr. Arthur was the Rev. Henry E.
Hubbard who was there for 14 years.
He later served at other churches
but when he finally retired he
returned to Yaterlouo to live and
died there on /pril G, 1957.

TRINITY CHURCH, SENECA FALLS

The church was orcganized Jen. 13,
1831 at the Franitlin Institute in
the Village of Senaca Falls. The
Rev. Reuben Hubbard was chairman
of the meeting and the official
name -adopted wzs "The Recter,

Church Wardens and VYestryzen of
Trinity Church of Senecaﬁ@h

L

The Rev. Mr. Hubbard was named rector
Lewis Bixby and John Isaac were
eiected the first wardens; Gary V. .
Sackett, Anthony Dey, John Morgan, (‘
Samuel Payne, Senter M. Giddings, ‘
George E. Freeman, Stephen B. Gay

and Chauncey F. Marshall were named
vestrymen.

A certificate of incorporation
sizned by the Rev. Reuben Hubbard,
Abnar N. Beardsley and Stephen S.
Viele was drawn up on Feb. 11, duly
acknowiedged before Luther F. Stevens,
first judge of the court of common
pleas, recorded at the county clerk's
office March 25, 1831.

Services were in what was known as
Bixby's school room located in the
upper flocr of a frame building on
Cayuga Street. On Aug. 7, 1831, the
Rt. Rev. Benjamin T. Onderdonk. bishop
of the Diocese of New York, visited
the parish and administered the rite
of confirmaticon. The service was
held in the Baptist church.

In 1832, Senter M. Giddings was
elected warden in place cof Jdohn sﬂ
Isgacs. Isaacs became a vestryman an
others included: CGeorge Arnold,

Abram Bartlett, J.M. Woodward. The
Rev. Reuben Hubbard resigned and was
replaced by the Rev. Seth Davis.

On Cecewber 26, J.M. Woodard,
knthony Dey and Samuel Payne were
appointed & committee to draw up &
subscription for the purpcse of
building a new church in Senecs Falls.
In January & lot was purchased of Ansel
Eac-om For $3060, helf in money and
the balance in churcih scrip.

The Rev. Dr, John M. Guion of
Connecticut, ordainad in 1830, came
to this area to serve as chaplain at
Auburn Prison. Trinity was then in
need of 2 rector and invited him to
speak to the scziety. Church members
were impressed and asked if he might
be interested in serving at the
church. He accepted, was officially




installed in May, 1855, and re-
mained as recter until ill health
forced him to resign in May 1876.

work started on the first Trinity
church on Nov. 18, 1833. The Rev.
Jesse Pound was rector at the time
The cornerstone was laid by the
Rev. J.C. Rudd, D.D. of guburn.

Services were in a large room
over the post office, in a building
on the nertheast corner of Bayard
and Ovid Streets. The new church
opened on Sunday July 27, 1834 and
on September 10, the same year, it
was consecrated by Bishop Onderdonk.
A class of 15 persons were con-
firmed by the bishop that evening.
Mr. Pound only remained until
1835. )

According to a8 historical article
on the church, printed for the
Seneca Falls Historical Scoety,
Dexter C. Bloomer was elected
warden in 1841, replacing Anthony
Dey who resigned. Also Josiah T.
Miller became & vestrvman. He
held the office until 1883 when he
transferred to St. Paul's Church
in Waterloo.

According to the records of the
Waterloo Presbyterian Church.
Dexter C. Bloomer and Amelia Jenks
daughter of Ananasias Jenks were
Married at the Waterloo Presbyterian
Church Oct. 9, 1839. Some records
give the date April 15, 1840 but the
first date was cop ied from the
church records.

Trinity church records show that
Dexter €. Bloomer was bapiised at
Trinity Church on April 8, 1843, w
with Anthony Dey as sponsor. Amelia
Bloomer was baptised the same day
with Malvina Seymour as sponsor.

It is doubtful that he would have
been named a vestryman before he’
was an official member of the church.

John Fitch, appointed a vestry-
man in 1835, became a warden in
1844 . He remained a warden until
he moved to the west in 1884.

In 1859 the church was enlarged
and improved. A rectory was built
on Cayuga St. on land donated by
ths junior warden, Frederick J.
Swaby. The building fund was started
witg a bequest from Mrs. Ruth M.
Ford.

One of the histories of the
church was written by George M.
Guion, son of the rector, for the
historical scciety. In his manu-
script he recalled the time when
the young men of the church answered
the call of President Abraham
Lincoln and enlisted in the Civil War
Three full companies were quickly
signed up at Seneca Falls and many
came from Trinity Church.

Guion recalled a special day when
these young men attended a special
service in their honor. He noted,
"The earnest scldierly looking
company, with full ranks and even
tread filedslowly intc the sacred
edifice. Placing their banner upon
the steps of tne altar, they re-
verently hent the knee before the
eternal God of battles. The white-
robed priest invoked His blessing
upen them and upon their flay.?

Two of the young men, George M.
and J. Marshall Guion were sons of
the recter. The Rev. Dr. Jdohn Guion
retired in 1876 aftar 50 yearsof
ministerial labor.

The parishoners outgrew the church
and in 1883, while celebrating its
§0th anniversary, a movement was
made for a new building. The corner
stene for the present church on
Fall Street was laid June 2, 1885
and the first service was on Easter
Sunday, April 25, 1886.
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'The Rev. Robert G. Quennell was
a popular rector. He came in Dece-
mber 1880 and remained during the
buildin of the new church. He
was a strong believer in working
with and helping the poor. During
his term he conducted frequent
services at the county alms house.
Dr. Guion, also a firm believer in
mission work conducted services for
several years in the northwestern
part of the village in available
rooms. Plans were started to
to build a church in that area but =he
building of the new church on Fall
Street. changed those plans.

The Rev.
Church, Binghamton in
cornerstone was laid while the
Franklin W. Bartlett was rector
and the church completed and conse-
crated during the pastorate of the
Rev. N.M. Denslow. The church was
consecrated Sept. 10, 183G by the
Rt. Rev. F.D. Huntingtorn, bishop of
the diocese.

Quennell went to Christ
1884. The
Rev.

At that time the wardens were:
Lansing S. Hoskins, Wiiliam B. L
Lathrop; the vestrymen, Cyrus Garnsey,
Stephen D. Mickiey, William V.

Yan Renssaaier, Beorge Shandley, A.
Seymour Pollard, George P. Pagers,
William M, Follett, Robert Tear.

The church was opened for the first
time on Easter GSunday, Apri! 23,
1886. The material used in the church
was native Hlue limestene, trimmed
with Onondags limestone. It was 105
feet long, 73 feet wide and 43 feet
high. The or'ginal tower was 105
feet high. It cost about $25,000 tgo
build.

The Rev. Mr. Denslow left Trinity
Church in 189%3. On Sept. 15, 1893.
" the Rev. William Bours Clarke was
installed as rectcr. 0n June 12,

1905 he was appointed grand

chaplain of the Grand Lodge of
Masons. In 1626 he began his a

24th year as rector of Trimity
Church. He was born in 1850 and G
died in 1931. He was rector of the
church for 30 years.

GRACE CHUPCH, WILLCHWBALE

families who lived in

the East Lake Road area of Favette
ofien <ravelsd in the 1830 and
Geneva to c¢tiend services
Cliyrch, Miss

imy ofian drove

o and buggy whan
hz sarvices. She
residert of Hobart
an Rensseleer,
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Coiiege,
asking him
scmeons Lo 8 lay reader.
Her tather had offered to open
their house for church services
to anysna who mignt

42



George Eastman, a student at
Hobart was appointed lay reader.
The first service was on April 20,
1873 at the Vincent M. Halsey
home at Willowdale on East Lake
Road. Twenty-two persons attend-
ed the first service. For a
special Christmas service, Thomas
Berryman offered his home. About
100 attended this service.

With the encouragement of his
family, Vincent Halsey gave of
portion of his farm to build a
church. The deed recorded Sept. ©
1874, noted that one-half acre
of Lot 24 in Fayette, formerly
Romulus. It was to go to the
trustees of the Parochial Fund
of the Protestant Episcopal Church,
for one dollar. The land, sur-
veyed by Prof. J. Fowler was to
be used to erect a church or
chapel for those who resided in
the vicinity. On Oct. 2, 1874 a
cornerstone for the new church
was laid by Bishop Huntington.

While the church was being
built Mr. Halsey invited the
workmen to stay at his home.

The church was consecrated as
Grace Church, Willowdale an
April 1, 1875. In the early
years Grace Church also provided
services at the dJerusalem brick
church.

ST. ANDREW'S, DEY'S LANGING

On Sept. 8, 1878, the Rev.
Charles W. MacNish, then chap-
lain at Willard Asylum, began
services in a schoolhouse at
Dey's Landing, along S2sneca
Lake.

It was an immediate and
successful endeavor and by
summer, ground was broken for
a new church. The church was

Consecrated on Jure 22, 1880 by
Bishop Huntington. The church
ontinued for ssvaral years but
it was extremely difficuit to
keep clergymzn znd it was closed
because there wera other churches
nearby to serve the members.

ALL SAINTS CHAPEL., KIDDERS
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EPISCOPAL CHAPEL, GLENWOOD resident from Astoria, KY who
owned a home in thet vicinity.

pel became toc small
i0se who attended the

ices and other activitie
and a good-sized hass was built to
accommodate a#ll those who attended,
church services, Sunday School and
other programs sponsored by ihe
church.

Seoon the ¢in
to hold a:il t
church servic

T

Two Episcopal chuches were built
at Kidder's and Sheldrake. Al-
though they were referved to @s
chapels, church services were
conducted 2t both of them.

In rezding about these two church
es in "Churches and Pestors of
Seneca County", one has the feel--
ing thet they were built for a
specific purpose.

Grace Church at Willowdale was
organized in 1874 and much of
the credit of its organization
has always been given to the
effort of Miss Mary Emeline Halsey.
About that time, Miss Mary L. Drake,

a summer guest at Colie's Hotel T FUWES  RERTA £ =
at Kidder's Ferry brought up the Proggstepi -;'?iaaiz“&nﬁiiﬁaéi
idea of establ.shing a church at Hayts Corners ;é;kat <h ;;hﬁol
the resort. Others continued with house on Jan. 14. 16883. The Rev
the idez end On Avg. 17, 1880, Charlas ¥. Nish Eoﬁéur+éd'thé
the corner stone of All Saints service. On dune 3. 1883. Bisho
Chapal was !aid at Xidders, and on Huntingan +3 ;’?é p;;form tﬁe
Sept. 29, 1882, the chapel was SACTemnent i Pration
consecrated by the Rt. Rev. F.D. N
Huntington, Bishop of Central The schoo! was used for several
New York. yegrs ovt the memberhip increased
an gecicion wes m

The Blenwcod chapel, also at 1gggat; bhuild 5w~;uigge ?ﬁ;lgoizer
Cayuga Lake, between Kidders and stone wzs lsid on Jdune 12, 1689
Sheldrake, was built in 1879, and wort on the church progressed
mainly through the generosity of with such cpeed %het the first
Mr. Cornelius Rapelye, a summer service was conducted in the chure



on Dec. &, 1889 and agzin on June 3,
1891, the bishop was invited for
the consecration of the nhurch.

ST. "STEPHEM'S, ROMULLUS
s RN
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In 1832
ians living in the hawlet
Romulus. An invitaticn was sent to
fev. Allan at St. Anarz's and he
went to Reomulus tTo coanduct &

of

service. Mork was siarcad un the
church in 1883 anc¢ the covner-
stone was ltaid dovember 7, that

year by the bishop. Th2 members
nf the building commiites were:
Richard M. Steeie, Charles H,
Sayre, Eugens S. Regac, Jesse
Yerkes and George OSwens. Work
stopped for a time beca.se the
funds were depieted hut ihe
members decided to continue and
the church was completed.

In November {285, the Rev. Mr.
Allen resigned and Wiliiam W.
Stacey of Geneva, a membar of

Grace Church was appointed as lay
reader. Just tfive rianths later, Mr.
Stacey diad buf the rectar from
Trumansburg was appainted as miss-
ionary and within five monihs, the
debt of the church was paid and
Bishop runtingron was again called
to consecrste a church in Seneca
County.

St. Stapien's continued for ex-
actly 10C yeers but in 1983 it
finally ceased to function. On
Nov. 13, 1983, th2 Centennial of the
laying of the corner stone was
celebratea with the Rt. Rev. 0'Keiley
Whitaker, Bishop of Central New
York in attandance. It was a sad
moment, the final service for St.
Stephen's Churcii.
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hamlet, and starting on Nov.i?;
1880 the services were held there

His work at the Asylum caused
the Rev. Mr. MacNish to give up
his church work at Willard and
Rev. William Allen took over.

In 1885 MacNish resigned as
chaplain and took over the church
again.

In 1988 only St. Paul's at
Waterloo; Trinity at Seneca
Falls, Grace Church at Willow-
dale and Christ Church at Willard
are still in use, All Saint's:
Chapel at Kidders was struck
by lightning and burned on
dune 14, 1911. Also long gone are
the churches at Glenwood, Hayts
Corners and Dey's Landing.

When it was decided to build
a new Episcopal Church in
Waterloo, the building shown
on the cover of this issue was
moved to the dewntown section
of the village. It was to be
used as an annex to the Towsley
House.

It was moved from its original
foundation, put on recllers and
rolled down Williams St. to
Virginia. It was to be placed
just around the corner but
whan the movers attempted to
turn the corner with this
cood-sized building, it be-
came siuck. According to the
account related in the news-
paper, it remained stuck for
quite some time before it was
successfully turned.

In later yesars it was the _
home of the Rose Hill Grange,
the two stores con the lower
floor have been used for many
businesses.Some long term

e

'@
businesses have heen the Menzer
Barber Shop, the law office of Harlow
Hartwell and the photograph studio of
Ellis Stratford.

The principal purpose of telling
the story of the Episcopal churches
of Seneca County was two=fold. First
was to demonstrate the fervor of the
members of the church and their gen-
erosity in establishing and building
so many churches in the county. The
second purpose was to relate the
sincerity and empathy of the various
rectors and church members.

In reseerching through various
sources, trying to collect the histor)
of Seneca County, it is amazing how |
often one learns about the good deeds|
of these people. To mention just a
Tew:

MISS MARY EMELINE HALSEY: As has been
recalled earlier in this article, it
was through her effort that Grace .
Church wes started. Through the annu
reports of the Seneca County Board of
Supervisors, one comes across the
name of Miss Halsey. She never ceased
in ter efforts to make life a little
better for ihe patients at the alm':
house and she also often visited the
jail to see if the prisoners needed
anything. Scmetimes she would per-
suade the rector of either S5t. Paul's|
or Trinity to accompany her to the
meeting of the beard of supervisors.

|

She would encourage the supervisors
to give the patients more blankets
and warm clothing. She also spent
many hours visiting the sick and
helping wherever she could. She be-
came godmother to hundreds of childre
when they were confirmed. Mrs.
Flossie Derr, a retired Waterloo
teacher who died recently was one of
her godchildren.

THE REV. CHARLES MACNISH: He was
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n in Orange County in 1844. When
Egrwas a boyghis fam{ly moved to

Horseheads where he grew up. In
early manhood he pursued a career
in business but later decided to
work in the church., His first
position was as assistant rector
at St. Paul's Church in Waterloo
in 1877 when he was a deacon.

One of his duties was to serve as
chaplain at Willard. He saw a need
for a church in the area and in
short order he was able to organize
three churches; the one at Willard
in 1878, at Dey's Landing, the
same year and another at Hayts Corn-
ers in 1883.

REV. ROBERT DUFF. The rectors of
both Trinity and St. Paul's churches
often visited the alms house in
Fayette to ccnduct services for the
patients or clients. It is quite
possible and probable that other
clergymen also visited there.

They also officiated at burial ser-
vices which were conducted at the
poor house cemetery. On one occ-
asion, the Rev. Mr. Duff, while
visiting the patients learned that
Someone had died and was buried but
no clergyman was called to officiate.

Mr. Duff's anger was not appeased by
merely informing the board of super-
visors of this neglect. One hundred
years since the event, the angry
words can still be seen in the records

of St. Paul's Church.
He wrote, "When I learned of this
neglect, I gathered a number of

clients together and we prayed at the
grave of this poor man."

Apparantly his words were heard for
generally, from that time on, the

deceased were buried at Restvale
or Maple Grove Cemeteries.

THE REV. WILLIAM BOURS CLARKE:
was born in Belvidere, N.J. in
1860. His father, the Rev. Hugh
L.M. Clarke, also a rector of the
Protestant Episcopal Church acc-
epted a call to the Zion Church
Rome, NY. The younger Clarke was
crdained in 1886 and after serving
in several churches in Central

New York he accepted a call to
Trinity Church in 1893. He died in
193! and had served as rector of
Trinity Church for over 30 years.

He

in

During the fall of 1518-19 and 20
the influenza epidemic was the
scourge of the nation. Seneca County
was equally affected. According to
the newspapers of 1918, soldiers
passing through the area on the
railroad wore gas masks'as a prevent-
ative. From October 1 to QOctober 29,
the newspaper reported 278 cases of
influenza just in Fayette, and
during that month, 70 people died
in Seneca Falls during the epidemic.
Churches were closed and conditions
were severe until the cold weather
settled in and destroyed the virus
or bacteria.

There was less mention of the
plague in 1813, possibly the sick-
ness was not as prevelant, but in
September 1920, the papers were
agein writing about another epidemic.

It was at this time that the
American Red Cross was initiated
in the county and the village of
Seneca Falls, primarily through
the efforts of the Rev. Mr. Clarke.

On Sept. 10, 1920, Mr. Clarke

openad the parish house and a
bospital was established there by
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Red Cross. Mrs. John Brignall
was in charge of the nurses

and on October 1, there were 29
patients in the hospital at the
parish house. Anyone who wanted
to help was invited to send a
gallon of ice cream.

This epidémic was not as severe
as the one in 1918. On December 3,
the paper noted there were 27

cases of diptheria at the hospital.

O0f these three were adults and
the others were children. Only
one person died at the hospital
in the 1920 epidemic.

TELEPHOKNES [N SENECA COUNTY

The concept of being ablie to t
to friends or relatives who re-
sided many miles away must have
been very appealing. The ides
was probably even more desirable
to the industrialists and merca-
ants of the late 1870's who had
to conduct their business by mail
or through personal attention.

An interest in telephones in
Seneca County was expressed sozn
after its introduction to the
public. Seneca Falls was one of
the first villages in the state
to elect to have telephone service
The first subscriber was Jamas H.
Gould.

At that time, Gould was in charge
of Goulds and also the Hood Coal
Co. He spcke to Walter D. Brown, a
local electrician about installing
telephones at the two locations.

The teiegraph company :intormed
Gould that if he could bet 15 to
20 subscripers that they would
build an exchange in the village.
Brown managed to sign up 19 some-
what reluctant customers and he
and Wells C. Fairbanks sat up an
exchange in the engine house at
115 Fall St.

60 subscribers. All were served
from a small room in the rear of
the engine house. Towers were built
on the highest buildings and there!
was only a short line of poles on l

Cayuga St.
¢

f
|
By October, Seneca Falls had !
f

ception of a telephone as early zs
November 1877. On November 2, a |
line was connected between the
Waterloo Woolen Mill's east mill
and the office. It consisted of
two wires twisted together, and &
piece of hard wood at each end of
the line. This contained a magnet
and zinc plate. A knob was pressed
in the office which set a bell
ringing by electricty in the east
mill, There another knob was press
and the answering bell was heard i
the oftfice.

Waterloo had a primitive con- l

A person would speak through the
telephone while somone held the
other end to his ear. The Waterlo?
Observer described it by writing,
"By speaking slowly and distinctl)
a voice could be heard almost as
plainly as if the speaker were in
the same room and not in & separad
building about 30 rods away."
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phone company to set poles in
october 1880. In Novemper a
switch board was placed in John
casterlin's office with 25
wires. Twelve business firms and
two residences were connected to
the first office. The first res-
idential pnone was installed in
the Richard P. Kendig house on
the corner of Center St. and
North Road. N

By May 1881, Waterloo and Geneva
were connected by telephone and
by April 1882 the telephone line
between Seneca Falls and Auburn
was completed by way of Mud Lock.

The first telephone scuth of

the river in Waterloo was installed
on Jan. 2, 1882 in the office of
Reamer and Halstead. Mrs. Herman
Brehm of Waterloo was one of the
first woman operators. In 1904
she worked mornings in Seneca
Falis and afterncons in Waterloo.
dJohn Brady of Seneca Falls was
wire chief for both villages for
more than 40 years.

In the eariy days of audio
communication there was no "Ma
Bell." Telephone compinies were
oraganized and the local municip-
alities were being persuaded to
allow the companies to have the
franchise for the telephane
husiness. In Fabruary 18%8, the
New Jersey Telephone Co. asked
parmisszion to put up poles in
Seneca Fails, If accepted, the
private lines wouid cest $18
a year, stores would pay $24;
fire and police alarms would be
provided at no cost in return
for the franchise.

/A
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Webster Parry of Richmond, Ind.
was granted a franchise to start a
new telephone service in Seneca
Falls. The maximum rate was still
listed at $18 a year. The company
agread to put in six free phones
for the village, install and main-
tain police and fire alarm systems.

That deal must have also fell
through for on Sept. 20, 1901 a
franchise was granted to Rawson
Construction Co. by the Seneca Falls
village trustees. The company was
to construct, operate and maintain
a telephone line in the village.

The local company was known as
the Home Telephone Company and on
May 10, 1904 it published a list of
subscribers. There were then 125
telephones in Waterloo and 197 in
Seneca Falls. By 1200 the telephone
had reached QOvid although the lines
were still not connected between
north and south Seneca County.

The October 1900 Ovid newspaper
nctad that among the first in Ovid

to get a telephone were: Peter Flynn,

Favette C. Allen, Benjamin Franklin,
Kinne Brothers, the Franklin

Hotei, L.C. Pitcher, E.C. Pomeroy
the Rev. Hendricks of Hely Cross
Caudrci and tha newspaper.

On Sept. 22, 1904, a new ccrps=
oration was organized as the
MacDougall Telephcne Company with
the foliowing officer: Addison

Baldridge, president; Clarence C.
Updike, vice president; Alexander
Baldridge, treasurer.It required
four and a half more years before
the MacDougail Tzlephone Company
its extension from Qvid

comnleted

49



to Hayts Corner and in January
1909 the line was nearly finish-
ed from Ovid to Elm Beach.

Telephone exchanges were
established throughout the county
In addition to offices at Waterloo
Seneca Falls and Ovid there were
others, some possibly located in
someone's house, at MacDougall,
Lodi, Interlaken, Fayette and Yale

Some of those who worked in
those early telephone offices
were: Fannie Brewer who was central
operator of the MacDougall office
In 1913 she was replaced by Mrs.
George Slaght. In 1926 Mrs. Earl
Murphy was chief operator of
the Ovid exchange and in April
1936, Miss Mable Nearpass completed
30 years with the Seneca Falls
Telephone office.

The Seneca County Home Telephone
Company was purchased by the Bell
company in 1913. At that time
Newman Jenkins was in charge of the
office. Ada Kuney, later Mrs. Bert

Marshall was the operator.

The telephone became a necessity
rather than a luxury , until today
it is indeed a rarity if somone does
not have a telephone. New York Bell
and then American Telephone and
Telegraph (AT&T) became the major
owners although small companies
have still managed to "“hang in
there".

Although there are always changes
and new developments such as the
telephone in the 1880's, television
in the 1950's and cable at the pres-
ent time, things still remain the
same, For example it would appear
that the telephone company has ex-
panded to the end of the world,
but there is still room for expan-
sion. At the present time M,C.I.
is preparing to lay wires through (%
Seneca Ccunty and soon local sub-
scribers will also have a choice of
long distance services.
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WOMEN OF ROMULUS WHO VOTED IN THE FIRST STATE ELECTION 1918

Edith Auten

Ella Armstrong
Mary Andes

Susan Brewer
Margaret Brooks
Fannie Baley
Kathryn Baker
Elizabeth Buckley
Anna Birdsell
Lillian Boice
Mary A. Barrus
Jessie Brady
Helen Bryant
Nellie Bell
Minnie Brown
Suessa B. Blaine
Sarah Brockway
Nancy Bartlett

Hanmah Auten
Anna Argus

Mary Brown
Lettie Ball
Bridget Bracken
Emily Bell

Mary Bannan
Mary Beaver
Marian Brown
Permelia Bryant
Maude Bow
Minnie Bogardus
Mary Bryant
Jennie B. Bogardus
Mina M. Beach
Mary Brennan
Susea Boice

Lulu M, Auten
Lattie Anderscon

Hattie Bronka
Fannie Brewer
Ruby Boyes

Mary Brennan
Jessie Bakenhaste
Ethel Burke

Mary Bowyer

Anna Brown

Susie Bogardus
Myrtle Boyes/R
Alice Braisington
Isabel Beach

Mary S. Brennan
Susan M. Bruce
Mary B. Baldridge
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puby T. Baldridge
Louise Carson
Alice M. Crane
Ellen Carroll
Lizzie Conley
Adelia J. Cole
Adah Carson

Mary Conley
Marcella Chamberlin
Minnie Church
Katherine Carroll
Emma Coryell
Alice Coryell
Mary Clark

Ida Chase

May Chaffee
Catherine Carroll
Esther Carroll
Amy Conklin

Alice Covert
Jdennie Clark

Nary Day

Barbara Deal

Mary Duffy
Margaret Duffy
Florence Daly
Grace Deal

Marigh Doane
Sarah Daley
Minerva J. Denniston
Vesta Doane

Mary A. Day

Alice S. Edwards
Helen Engle
Libbie Erpnsberger
Anna Excell

Anna Early

Carrie Everett
Catperine Fowler
Margaret Falvey
Mary Furbeck
Frances Fitzsimons
Lulu Frost

Eliza Foley
Carrie £. Freleigh
Catherine J. Garrison
Fannie H. Gates
Lucy Gallagher
Catharine Giddings
Lillian Godley

Ella J. Bell -
Bertha W. Courtright
Susan L. Coryell
Thersathusa B. Conklin
Agnes Crane

Martha B. Crane
Harriet Coddington
Carrie Conley
Lottie Chamberlin
Minnie Church

Emma Carmer

Matie Choate

Ada Chapin

Julia M. Church
Ann Belle Coryell
Laura Cross

Louise Currie

Anna Conley

Lydia Covert
Jennie Campbell
Edith Collins
Bethiah Doane
Elizabeth Ditmars
Pear] Denniston
Ada DeVaney

Lizzie Dean

Julia Doughty
Cecelia Daley

Eva Dunlap

Sarah Durston
Sophia Dorenmus
Sarah Doremus
Nessie Everatt
Ella Everett

Corna Everts

Mary Everts
Florence Everett

Ruth M. Frest
Meliss Fielid
Mary Feehan
Ida Farrell
Catherine Flynn
Genavieve Foley
Sarah A. Flynan
Viola Grover
Ida M. Garrison
Eva Groom
Cora M. Gable
Nora Gambee

Wb

Mary Bainbridge
Susie E. Crane
Elizabeth K. Crane
Laura J. Covert
Sarah J. Coryell
Clara J. Crane
Martha A. Cook
Josephine Chamberlin
Sarah Crans
Katherine Clare
May Carey '
Anna Carey

Emma Combs

Bell Conley

Mary 0.C. Carroll
Sarah Conley
Nellie Conley
Jan Cansay
Fannie Cox

Lydia Conley
Celia Conley
Helen Ditmars
Cora €. Draheim
Bridget Durnin
Daisy Dox

Minnie Drake
Kate DeBoer
Jennie Dimmick
Sarah Dean

Grace M. Dunning
Jennie Dart

Anne Everingham
Hannah W. Ernsberger
Emma Excell

Anna Everett

Louise Eames

Mary Fallan
Genevive Foley
Catherine Field
Elizabeth Feehan
Sarah A. Flynn
Cora E. Freleigh
Alice Folwell
Myrtle E. Gates
Grace Gallagher
Catharine Gatens
Edith Graveling
Helen S. Godley
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Mable Garnett
Laura Grow
Julia Hoaglin
Alice Hoaglan
Caroline Hancy
Amy Hancy
Catherine Hoey
Elizabeth Hoult
Hellen Hardenbrook
Nellie Harrington
Mary Hanley
Satie Hicks.
lizabeth Hyna
Rose Hansen
Bridget Hanratts
Laura J. Hagerty
R. Agusta Hagerty
iary L. Johnson
Catharine Jchnson
Maigaret Jopson
Margaret Jchnsan
Mary E. Kinne
Katherine Keenan
Elnora Kinnie
Lura Kinnie
Mary Kuney
cmma Kyle
Lena Kennelly
Anna Kinnie
Mary E. Lane
Barbara Lane
Mary Limner
Agnes Louchren
Losa Lewis
Ursula Louchren
Catharine Lyman
Elizabeth Louchren
Catherine Louchren
Ursula Louchren, I1
Margaret Lynch
Henriettz Miller
Ethel! Murrchy
Lizzie Miller
Margaret Martin
May Marsh
Adie Mundy
Pauline Maramae?
Margaret Murphy
Ida Munson
Mary Miller
Grace Markell
~Lelah yers
Anna McArdle
Mary Mc Millen
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Carrie Griffith
Leriora Grow
Caroiine Haney
Lucy Howard

Nelliie Hancy

Anna Hoaglin
Margaret Horden
Mary C. Hiliiard
Mary Herwin
Frances Hetblethwaite
Harriet 'larmon

Eva Hoffman
Kathei'ire karveston
Mary Howel!

Rose M. Henninger
Mzigaret S. Harris
May E. Hinkle
Adeline Jacacks
0live J8iiy

Jennie L. Johnsen

Lettie A. Kinne
Elizabeth “ent
Libbie Kinnan
Barbara Keanan
Julia Keenan
Eertha Knight
Lelah Kuns

Bevrtha Lynch
Netta Litzenberger
Elizabeth Latimer
Mary Lerkin
Louise Lecng

Mary A. Lisk

Vens Langis

Grace Larkin

Rosa Limner
Minnie Lguchren
Sarah Lintner
Anna Mages

Leona Mezgae

Agries Moher
Bridget #urphy

Myra Maller
Kathryn Mackey
Carrie Marsh
Annin Messerler
Bertha Munson
Sarah Munday

Minnie McArdle
Julia Mchrdle

Libbie Grosheck

Marjerie Hancy
Sarah Hancy
Bessie Hoaglan
Naomi Hoaglan
Anna Hall

Ina Healey

Anna Hilliard
Ellen Hoagiangd
Leona E. Hinman
Mary Henry

Anna Hart

Mary Heramon
Mary C. Hewerth
Anna Hamilton
Alice C. Harris
Matilda Jacacks
Kate Jeffery
Carrie Jones

Emma Karr
Margaret Kinnie
Harriet Knapp
May Keenan

Mary Keenan
Elizabeth Knight
Lottie Kaiser

Crpha Lane

Sarah Lezne
Margarst E. Louchren
Margaret Lochien
Mellie Linet
Sarah Landis
Marie Lvman
Margaret Louchren,Il
Nelliz Louchren
Agres lLouchren
Hattie Lipker
Mary Maher

Mary Murphy

Mary Ellen Marks
Katherine Makin
Liliie Marsh
Jenny Marsh

Anna Marsh

Cora Myers
Jdeiinia Munday
Hattie Messerler
Helen Moraski

Esther McDonald
Ann McArdle
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Sharlet MacArthur
Gertrude McLaugh!lin

Jennie MclLafferty
Emma Mcliann
Josephine McMillen
Elizabeth McCarthy
Mary McKenna

Mable McCheyne
Martha McWhorter
Elizabeth Nielson
Mary Nickerson
Bertha Newton

Maud O0'Brien

Mary Oughterson
Mary 0'Desz
Catherine 0'Marra
Jdennie E. Osford
Mildred Pratty

Eva H. Pontius
Josephine Phillips
Martha Parker
Eisie Pearl
Synthia “oarke
Susan Ritter
Martha Rooney
Catherine Rielly
Meliie Quinn

Anna Rearke

Nora Quinn

tlla Rooney
Catherine E. Reeder
Maude Ruscell
Delia Slagit
Floreiace M, Steele
Louisa Swarthout
faran Stockdale
Litcy 3. Sackett
Mary Lib Sutton
Nell Smith

May Stahl

‘2ar! Stein

arrie Smith

irene Stah!

Mina Schmeltz
Sarah Stockdiale
Mary C. Spader
Lena Swick

Bartha Speer
Melisa Stout
Frances Tomzak
Elizabeth Trainor
vennie Townsend
Celia Trairor
t-1zabeth S. Trainor
Mary Totten

.,
[t

<€
£
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Lillian McHenry
Nellie McGrehan
Bessie McMann
Sarah McGrain
Alice McHany
Bridget McElroy
Frances Mc¥eel
Agnes F. McYhorter
Ella L. McWnorter
Katherine Nickleson
Edith Nealy

Josephtﬂﬁsrzen
Nellie Orourke
Hazei UOsborn

Lucy 0'Marra

M. Josepnine Osborne
Jane E. Pontius
Fannie L. Pontius
Elizabeth Palmer
Josephine Phillips
Lucy Perrin

Anna Fishner Roarke
Anna Rumsey

Laura Rexfsrd
Bridget Roach

Mary Quinn

Mary Rundell
Marthe Ryan

Martha Rooney
Nellie A. Rozelle

Florence Sharman
Pear! D. Smith
Vera Skinner

Anna Swarthout
#Mable Sabin
Delight Stonsa
Kate Steele
Carrie Smellay
Alia Sturgics

Anna Saeiey

Jarah Simpson
Alieada Sweatman
Carrie Sayre
Marion Smith
Grace Schapy

Ceya Schweikierd?
Elizaheth Smith -
Mildred Tiliinghast
Mary Taylor

Emma Troutman
Grace Taylor
Katherine Turney
Mary Troskosky

Ida McKee
May McArdle

Mary A. McGrain
Anna McGough
Margaret McGrain
Meryellen McGinnis
Eila McGinnis
Altha B. McKhorter
Alice McWhorter
Mary Miver

Jessie Nickerson

Ann M. Osborn

Anna Osborn
Margaret C'Marra
IsaT M. Osborn
Catherine Osborne
Kathlean L. Protts
Alice N. Pettibone
lLeona Parcy

Rena Parsells
Nellie Quinn
Elizabeth Rice
Isabella Roach
Margaret Riel

Lena Rising

Nellie Quinn

Mary Quinn

Mable Rall
Charlotte Roberts
Lile Russell

Sarah B. Sawyer
Mary Sprowles
Olive Smith

Mabel Smit!
Nellie Swarthout
Sherlictt Stockdale
Annie Slocum

Maud Secor

Mable M. Stahl
Lottie Sturgis
Isabel Simpson
Sarah Strawbridge
Frances Smith
Emily Sutton
Minnie Stout
Myrtle Swinehart

Jean Turnbull

Ella Thorp

Jennie Teownsend
Nellie C. Trainor
Phyllis Tillinghast
Nelly Turney
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Stella Tillinghast
Mary Lib Townsend
Joanna Thompson
Eleanor Updike
Minnie Vaughn
Mildred Vincent
Bessie Van Gorder
Maud Van Nostrand
Minnie Vaughn
Carrie C. VYan Nostrand
Carrie D. Williams
Anna Whalen
Margaret Woods
Cora HWarren

Jesse Wilson
Jessie F. Wilscn
Nellie; Yarnell
Addie Yoder

Hattie Yerkes
Zadie Yakley
Katherine M. White
Rose Yakley
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Margaret Trask
Florence Tobin

Florence Van Nostrand
Ellen Vreeland
Carrie Van Duyn
Mary E. Vail

Mary A. Yail

Clara Yan Treese
Harriet Van Duser
Maude L. Williams
Grace D. Hilliams
Bessie Wilkin
Katherine Walda
Phoebe HWarne
Elizabeth A. Wilson
Rebecca Yarnell
Alice Yerkes

Ruth Yerkes
Henrietta Wells
Mary Weise

Alice Zimmer

Susan Troutman ‘
Mary A. Thorpe

Lucy VYan Orsdale
Lillian Van Vleet
Edna Van Vleet
Carrie Van Nostrand
Mable Van Nostrand
Nina Van Nostrand
Mary H. Van Vleet
Ethel M. Williams
Elizabeth S. White
Ida Wakelee

Lodia Wagner

Mary E. Wilson
Alma Wilson
Lillian Yakley
Ermine Yerkes
Julia Yerkes

Elia White

Emma F. Woods

HISTORICAL MARKERS
IN SENECA COUNTY

In the late 1920's and early
1930's, New York State, through
the Department of Education
placed hundreds of blue and geld
markers along the highways of
the state, identifying historic
areas.

There are alsoc a number of bronze
tablets to identify the route
taken hy the Sullivan-Clinton
Army during the Revolutionary
War and a marker for the location
of the traveles of the Jesuit
Missionaries through the Indian
country

There are no markers in Waterloo,
Junius or Tyre although one could
select a number of historic sites
such as the location where the
Army of the Revolution crossed at
the foot of Seneca Lake in the
town of Waterloo.

The first marker was placed on
June 14, 1928. It was in ovid,

southwest of the village, a bronze
tablet, on the Sullivan Trail. ‘

The markers {(some of which are now
missing), which were placed in Seneca
County are:

1. 0ld schoolhouse. Was the second
used for school purposes. It was in
Farmersville (Interlaken}. In 1845
it was known as Farmersville Instituts

2., Camsite for Sullivan's Army in
Ledi. They camped on the site Sept.
4, 1779, It was located one-quarter
mile east of Silver Thread Falls.

3. Burroughs Point, site of Indian
village destroyed during Sullivan
Campaign. Troops under Col. Henry
Dearborn camped there. (located along
Route 89).

4. There are a number of other
markers for Indian villages.

5. Reservation Road, the north and g
south road laid out on the westerfd _‘
boundary of West Cayuga Indian Reseiig
vation, formerly a plank road. A 0
gate was located at that site.
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6. Mynderse Academy named for
Col. Wilhemus Mynderse, who
donated the land used for the
first academy.

7. Home of Gary V. Sackett, judge
of court of common pleas and prom-
oter of the canal system.

8. The Beehive Tavern of pioneer
days, built 182%&.

9. Site of old McCall Tavern,
(still standing), oldest frame
house on turnpike road between
Ithaca and Seneca Falls, built
before 1798. Located on Route
96, northern limits of village
of Interlaken.

10. Canoga Landing, site of
Indian village destroyed during
Sullivan campaign. Frontenac
Island is east and nearly across
Cayuga Lake.

12, The Kingdom, prominent
river crossing in stage and
canal days. Mrs. Amelia J.
Bloomer taught schaool there.

13. First convention for Wo-
men's Right 1848.

17. Canoga Spring, a spring
which contained pure nitrogen
gas.

15. Bridgeport, former Cayuga
Ferry and West Cayuga terminus
of stage line. Cayuga 3ridge
crossed there when Auburn was
still known as Hardenburgh
Corners.

16. Home of Elizabeth Cady
tanton, promoter of First
Women's Rights Convention.

17. Kendaia, Indian village in
Varick, destroyed by army, Sept.
17, 1779.

18. Birthplace of Rev. Thomas
Lounsberry, in QOvid

THE VALIENT

WILLIAM H. LOTZ, 70 of Ovid died
December 15, 1987 at Canandaigua
Yeterans Hospital, Born Galen, son
William and Anna Gutchen Lotz.
Served in U.S. Army and was veteran
of World War II

I et T T S S S O S

JAMES R. (BOB) MAC CHEYNE, 59 of
Interlaken, Dec. 15, 1987/ Buried
Lakeview Cemetery. Born Seneca
Falls, son of Alexander and Neva
Blew MacCheyne. Member Trumansburg
American Legion and Ovid VFW.

S I

JAMES L. BERRETTA, 70, in Gorham,
Dec. 19, 1987. Born April 19, 1917 in
Seneca Falls, A army veteran of
World War II..

S T S S R S R RS

MRS, ALICE C. MAC DONALD, 67 pf
Seneca Falls died Dec. 2/, 1987. Buri:
St. Columkille Cemetery. Born Seneca
Falls Sept. 28, 1%20, daughter of
Paul and Catharine Magill Fredernburg
Veteran of Worl War II. served in
the WAAC'S.

T T i S S S A A

MRS. FLOSSIE R. DERR, 83 of Waterloo
died Dec. 26, 1987, buried Maple
Grove Cemetery. Born Sept. 12, 1904
in Fayette, daughter of Floyd and
Jennie Harmon Bachman. Was first
a country teacher in the Five-Points
school and later at Waterloo Central
School until retirement in 1873.

I I

HAROLD S. CHAMPION, 75 of Lodi,
died Dec. 28, 1987, buried Lakeview
Cemetery, Interleken. Born Hector,

son of Jerome and Edith Newberry
Champion. In the US Army and a veter-

an of World War II.
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ROBERT J. REED, 39 of 0Ovid died
Jan. 20, 1988. Born April 21,
1948 in Buffalo, son of Robert G
and Ruth E. Miller Reed. He was a
Vietnam veteran who served in US
Army.

E R T

~ ANTHONY V. NETTI, 55, died in
Auburn, Jan. 21. 1988. buried

St. Joseph's Cemetery, Auburn. He

was born in Auburn. He was former

manager of Ames Department store

Town of Waterloo and a veteran

of the Korean War, in the US

Army.

T T I T S

JAMES SY A. BACHMAN, 54 of
Waterloo died Jdan. 22, 1988, when
he was hit by an autoc on Pre-
Emption Rd. while walking along
the highway. He was born July 12
1933 in Waterloo, son of James
and Jane T. Hughes Bachman, a
veteran of the US Navy

T T S S S S R

GEORGE MC DERMOTT,(CARL), 69,
of Seneca Fails, died Jan. 30,
1988 in Arizona, buried in 5t.
Columkille Cemetery. He was born
July 7, 1918, son of dJdames and
Mary Morrin McDermott, was a for-
mer Seneca Falls police officer
and a World War II HMavy veieran

EEE AT I T T T S S S

PHILLIP F. HOLLENBECK, 73 of
Watkins Glen, died Feb. 8, 1988,
buried Holy Cross. He was born in
Cortland, Aug. [9, 1914, son of
George and Mabel BGay Hollenbeck.
He was a veteran of World War
IT in the army air corps and was
the father of Phillip Hollenbeck
of Seneca Falls.

N T I T T T

MARION N. DE CICCA, of Waterloo
died Feb. 9, 1988. He was born in
Waterloo and was mayor of the
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. died Feb.

village of Waterloo for 24 years He
retired in 1983.
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SCAMLON, 63-of Waterloo
11, 1888 in the veterans
hospitalin Syracuse. He was born
in Medina and had lived in Waterloo
since 1351. Buried in Maple Grove
Cemetery. He served in the infantry
in World War II and received two
Purple Heartis. He wac past American
Legion county commander.

ROBERT E.
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BROTHER PATRICK THOMAS RAGAN, 69
of Brothers of Mercy in Buffalo,
buried in Clarence, NY. He was born
Aug. 12, 1918 in Seneca Falls, son
of John and Julia Cuddeback Ragan.
He started his religious life in
1938 at Greymoor on the Hudson.
+ + + + + +F +FF + A+ F o+

BERNICE (SHORTY) LUM of Waterloo

died Feb. 13, 1988, buried St. Mary's
Cemetery. He was a veteran of World
War I1.
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EDWARD L. POWERS 58, in Waterloo, ‘
Feb. 16, 1988. buried Maple Grove
Cemetery. Born in Syracuse, he had
been in Waterloo since 1%40. He

served in the Korean conflict in
the US Army.

A F AR R b

WILLIAM CURTIS RIDLEY,
Waterloc, March &, 1988,
0aklawn Cemetary, Phelps, Born
April 16, 1623 in Junius, son of
Clarence H. and Mary T. Pletts
Ridley. He was a veteran of the US
Army and servedin Europe in World
War II.

TR T S R S S

64, in
buried

ALLEN ¥W. HAWKER, SR. 59 in Seneca
Falls March 5, 1988. Born Jordan,
Nov. 10, 1928, son of Verner and

Maude Zellars Hawker. He was a
veteran of World War II and the
Korean conflict.
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